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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The McKim Observatory was built in 188U for the purposes of astronomical 
observation and teaching. Its location on a small hill at elevation 262 meters on 
the northeast edge of Greencastle, Indiana, was chosen after an earlier attempt to 
create an on-campus observatory failed because of environmental disturbances. The 
structure has a stone foundation with a crawl space. The walls are made of brick 
one foot thick, but in 1918 the outside brick surface was stuccoed and it is now 
painted white. The roof is flat and was originally tin, though it is now covered with 
rolled roofing. The dome is a new aluminum one manufactured by the Ash Company 
of Illinois and purchased in the Spring of 1975. It is activated electrically and 
is eighteen and one half feet in diameter. The original IT-foot-diameter dome was 
iron and was activated by a hand pull. When the new dome was installed, four courses 
of brick and mortar were removed and a concrete cap was made to enlarge the rim of 
the building to accomodate the new dome. There is a blacony around the south and 
west sides of the dome for outside observation.

In 1890 a four-inch almucantar owned by S. C. Chandler, Jr., son of the inventor 
of the modern almucantar, was housed in a separate building not far from the 
Observatory. It was used for very accurate work. Early pictures show it as a 
small, octagonal, domed building made of wood. It is not known when the almucantar 
was razed.

The Observatory is an L-shaped, one-story building surmounted by the dome and 
consists of five rooms: the chronograph, clock, transit, and equatorial rooms and 
the library. The library forms the north point of the L and the transit room 
the east point. The chronograph room (also the entry room) is on the corner of 
the L. The clock room is an octagon-shaped protrusion from the corner of the L, and 
the equatorial room is directly above it. At the present time only the equatorial 
room is used, though the library will soon be renovated and used as well.

The equatorial room contains a 9«53 inch clear aperture refracting telescope 
made by Alvan Clark and Sons of Cambridge, Massachusets in 1885* At the time 
Clark was the most famous lens maker in the world, noted for, grinding lenses which 
eliminated chromatic aberrations and color fringes. His grinding technique cannot 
be duplicated even today. The cast iron equatorial pier mounting of the telescope 
was done by Warner and Swasey of Cleveland, Ohio, and, since it is supported by a 
masonry pier resting on a special layer of clay, it provides an unshakable foundation 
for the telescope. The telescope was transported to Wilmot-Fleming Company of 
Philadelphia in October of 1970 for refurbishing and was returned in March of 1971.

The transit room has currently nonoperable sliding doors in the ceiling and 
a brass mercator transit with a sixteen-inch meridian circle manufactured by Fauth 
and Company of Washington, D. C. The original brass Warner and Swasey Chronograph 
and the glass slide library are still in the Observatory, The solar and siderial 
pendulum clocks made by E. Howard and Company of Boston, Massachusetts, have been moved » 
to the Mathematics Department of DePauw University and are in perfect working order. 
Both the transit and the clocks were installed at the time the Observatory was built.

Some of the floor joists and the entire floor of the transit room have been 
replaced because of termite damage and rot. The inside walls are plastered and 
painted. Work is currently being done to repair damaged plaster and peeling paint. 
The eleven windows are the common double hung type, while the floors are oak,
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as is a four-foot high panel along the stairs.

Presently the library and chronograph rooms are heated by electric heaters though 
originally there was a wood-burning stove in the library, later converted to oil. 
It has now been removed, though the chimney remains. There is no plumbing of any kind 
in the building.

Of architectural interest are the curved oak staircase with its three porthole win­ 
dows, the foot thick brick walls, the carved metal locks on the doors, the octagonal 
clock room, and the ornate cornices. Of historical interest are the pieces of 
teaching and research equipment dating back to 1885: the celestial globe and stand, 
lantern, cameras, star charts, sextant, and a hand-operated device to illustrate 
solar eclipses.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE .
The McKim Observatory of DePauw University is a prime example of a late nineteenth 

century facility for teaching and research in astronomy. It has been in continuous 
use since 1885. McKim is distinguished as one of 355 optical observatories throughout 
the world and one of 107 in the United States listed in the annual American Ephemeris 
and Nautical Almanac. It is one of only 15 American observatories listed that are 
equipped with meridian transits. The lens of the telescope was made by Alvan Clark, 
the quality of whose work was unsurpassed in the nineteenth century. The one-meter 
lens made by Clark for the Yerkes Observatory in Williams Bay, Wisconsin, is still 
the largest one ever made and mounted.

In 188U the Joint Board of Trustees and Visitors of Indiana Asbury University 
(the first Methodist College in Indiana) considered the building of the Observatory 
so important to raising the status of the University that it supplemented the $8000 
gift of Robert McKim with $2000 in order to build"the right kind of observatory. 
Indeed, it signaled the transformation of struggling Indiana Asbury University into 
the dynamic new DePauw University in January of 188^. In fact, Robert McKim and 
Washington C. DePauw made their gifts to the University interdependent, thus 
assuring the strong future and expansion of the University. We have detailed records 
of McKim Observatory's construction through this precarious period of the University's 
history and of its use during the ensuing 93 years. It still serves as a teaching 
facility and, though the nature of astronomical research has changed considerably 
over the last century, the Clark telescope is still a fine instrument valued not only 
by historians but by amateur astronomers as well. McKim Observatory is worthy of 
preservation not only for the record of its past usefulness but for its future promise 
as well.

Professor John P. D. John, the first Director of the Observatory (1885-1887), 
and Robert McKim visited nearly every prominent observatory in the United States 
when they were planning the McKim Observatory. In so doing they were able to design 
a facility well suited to both teaching and research, avoiding mistakes in design 
that would have detracted from its usefulness. It is telling of the care involved in 
the construction of the Observatory that so much interest was taken by both of these 
men. McKim, according to the daily journal of Joseph Marshall, the architect, was 
frequently on location checking the progress as well as the quality of the work and 
materials.

Dr. John became the President of DePauw in 1889, thus expanding his dynamic 
interest in the educational process to the total educational policy of the University. 
His inaugural address, titled "DePauw University: Its Opportunity and Its Duty," 
emphasized the greater freedom based on the increased resources of the modern 
university. Surely he spoke with the splendid new Observatory in mind as one of 
DePauw's finest resources.
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Meanwhile, Wilbur Vincent Brown came to DePauw in 1885, beginning his 43-year 
association with McKim Observatory. He became Director in 1887. In his notebooks 
we have a reflection of the uses to which the Clark telescope was put during its first 
half century. His observations were dedicated largely to comet sweeping. He evidently 
hoped to discover a new comet, though there is no record of his ever having done so. 
Then, in decreasing order, his observations were nebular, solar, planetary, double- 
star, and lunar. In addition to the long hours of careful and detailed observations, 
recording of angles and declinations, and sketching of various formations of stars, 
W. V. Brown was also using the Observatory for its other designated purpose - the instruc­ 
tion of students in astronomy. During Brown's tenure, both General or Descriptive 
Astronomy and Practical or Spherical and Instrumental Astronomy were taught, the 
former emphasizing the use of the telescope for purposes of observation and the latter 
using all of the Observatory's instruments. With the death of Brown in 1928 a key 
link with the 19th century was lost and the continuity of research at McKim Observatory 
was broken.

R. W. Babcock assumed the Directorship in 1928 and was in charge for three seeminqly 
undistinguished years, during which time both Descriptive and Practical Astronomy 
continued to be taught. Dr. Will Edington began his 25-year tenure as Director of 
the Observatory in 1930. During this period the Observatory was used for regular 
astronomy laboratories and for campus and community open houses. The open houses were 
dicontinued when it became apparent that students viewed open house night as an 
inexpensive date and as an occasion to exclaim in wonder rather than as a serious 
opportunity to learn skill with the telescope. During the World War II years Nautical 
Astronomy and Navigation was added to the curriculum.

Charles H. Johnson taught astronomy at DePauw from 1955-1967 and made extensive use of 
the Observatory. Also during this time an active Astronomy Club was formed in Green- 
castle, and the weekly meetings were generally held at the Observatory with Dr. Johnson 
and several employees of the local IBM plant in attendance. Joseph Corbett has 
regularly offered two courses in astronomy since 1968: Astronomy of the Solar System 
and Stellar Astronomy.

During the last several years interest in the Observatory has been renewed. The telescope 
has been refurbished and only recently has been used to view Pluto, a significant 
accomplishment for an instrument of its size. The dome has been replaced and a regular 
program of maintenance and repair has been begun. The Observatory and its equipment 
are presently valued at more than $150,000, nearly 20 times the original value. Plans 
are underway to create a small museum in the Observatory containing 19th century 
teaching equipment and explaining the uses of the equipment. Perhaps some of the early 
Observatory pictures and documents may be included. McKim Observatory will not only 
be available for use by serious amateur astronomers, but will also serve as a museum 
of early astronomy. Thus, just as astronomy has always had an esteemed place in the 
liberal arts curriculum, so McKim Observatory will be of enduring value as a university 

building.
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Institution Press, City of Washington, 1968.

6. The American Ephemeris and Nautical Almanac for the Year 1977, U.S. Government 
Printing Office, Washington, 1975.

7. The DePauw University Archives.


